
Mrs J Wallace
Head of Paid Service
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG

DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700

Date: 4 March 2019

MEETING OF INTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

On: Tuesday 12 March 2019 At: 4.00 pm

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

NOTICE OF MEETING

To: Councillor P Watson (Chair)
Councillor K James (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: R Boughton, C Cottle-Hunkin, J Hutchings, T Inch, M Langmead, 
P Pennington and C Simmons

Non elected Members: Mr Dengate, Mr Harper

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)

1.  Apologies For Absence 

2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 9)
Confirmation of the minutes held on 12 February 2019.

3.  Action List (Pages 10 - 11)

4.  Declaration Of Interests 
Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of their 
interest when the item is considered. 

5.  Public Participation 
15 minute period for public contributions.



- 2 -

6.  Urgent Matters Brought Forward With The Permission Of The Chair 

7.  Agreement of Agenda Items Part I And II 

8.  Play Strategy - Call-in (Pages 12 - 16)
To receive the report of the Planning & Economy Manager.

9.  QBR 3 (Pages 17 - 32)
To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources).

10.  Income Generation 
To receive an update from the Income Generation Task & Finish Group.

11.  Consideration Of The Forward Plan (Page 33)
To review the Forward Plan.

12.  Exclusion Of The Public 
The Chairman to move:- 

That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards, tel 01237 428705



1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

INTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS

Tuesday, 12 February 2019 - 10.00 am

PRESENT Councillor P Watson (Chair)
Councillors K James, R Boughton, C Cottle-Hunkin, Hutchings, 
T Inch, M Langmead, P Pennington and C Simmons

Mr S Dengate - Non-elected Member
Mr I Harper - Non-elected Member 

ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources)
D Heyes - Finance Manager
M Richards - Democratic Services Officer
K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer

61.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies.

62.   MINUTES 

It was proposed by Councillor Langmead, seconded by Mr Harper and –

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2018 be agreed and signed 
as a correct record.  

(Vote: For 7, Abstentions 3)

Matters Arising

Minute 55 - Section 106 Agreements And Affordable Housing Update

Mr Dengate raised the point that S106 Improvement Plan did not appear on the 
Forward Plan.  It was also noted that The Planning & Economy Manager was to 
have prepared a report for the next meeting about the distribution of S106 monies. 
The Chair responded that items for the Forward Plan would be considered under 
item 9 of the agenda and that the Planning & Economy Manager will present a 
report on the distribution of S106 monies to the April meeting.  Today’s meeting 
was a special meeting for discussion of the Budget 2019/20, Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2023-24.

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

Minute 56 – Call-In

Councillor Pennington referred to the question he had raised at Full Council about 
S106 contributions and the response from the Planning & Economy Manager.  He 
said it was important that Councillors ensure they ask for enough detail in their 
questions, for example, in this case the question should also have been raised as 
to whether there was any money in pipeline.

63.   ACTION LIST 

The action list was reviewed and updated.

Minute 49 a) Harbour Board

It was felt reference to Harbour Income, rather than income from the harbour could 
be confused with income associated with the charity “Harbour”.  The Strategic 
Manager (Resources) explained that the Harbour Board is the body that manages 
the harbour and that harbour income is generated by activity in the harbour.

Minute 58 b) – Income Generation Task and Finish Group

The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that the Task and Finish Group will 
meet on 20 February, as stated on the action list.

Minute 60 – Consideration of the Forward Plan – Economic Profile

The Governance Manager was trying to acquire up to date figures but to date had 
been unsuccessful.

Councillor Pennington enquired whether the paper circulated by the Strategic 
Manager (Resources) had also been sent to all members.  The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) confirmed it had been sent to Internal and External Overview & 
Scrutiny.

Mr Harper asked whether any work had been carried out in conjunction with the 
External Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  As Vice Chair of External Overview & 
Scrutiny, Councillor Pennington will speak to the Planning & Economy Manager.

64.   PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS 

There were no public contributions.

65.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion.

Page 4



3

66.   URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR 

Thee were no urgent matters brought forward.

67.   AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II 

There were no part II items.

68.   BUDGET 2019/20, MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2019-20 TO 2023-
24 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) explained that items 8 a), b) and c), as detailed 
below, formed part of the overall report which had been considered 
by Community & Resources:  

a) Proposed changes to Council Tax Legislation - Long Term Empty Properties 
and Review Current Council Tax Local Discount Policy

b) New Homes Bonus Community Grants
c) Recommendations from Community & Resources

The report served to highlight the funding shortfall faced by the Council in the 
future; the need to find savings; and the changes required to achieve a balanced 
budget in each financial year between 2018/19 and 2023/24.

The Finance Manager delivered a PowerPoint presentation, providing detailed 
information on: 

 Government Funding
 Council Tax
 Business Rates
 New Homes Bonus
 Draft budget for 2019/20
 Funding Horizon
 Financial Strategy
 Assumptions & Risks

There had been few surprises as this was the last year of a 4 year settlement.  
However, unexpected funding had been made available to Torridge District Council 
in the form of a Rural Delivery Grant, amounting to £94k.  An additional £35k had 
been released from surplus Business Rate Levy monies.

The Committee was informed that the headlines from the budget were:

 The deficit is projected to grow significantly.
 The impact of increasing the council tax.
 New Homes Bonus.

Page 5



4

 Homelessness  -  the number of people in bed and breakfast and hostels, 
the statutory duties of the Council, the increased homelessness demand and 
the impact on the Council’s finances.

 Business Rates – although successful with the pilot bid in 2018, the Authority 
had been unsuccessful for the coming year due to the Government wanting 
new areas to pilot bid status.

A number of questions were raised during the presentation and these were 
addressed as follows:

 The projected deficit increase in 2021 was due to a variety of factors 
including the LGA agreed pay award and the need to combine and delete 
some pay points to mitigate the shortage of HGV drivers and to attain parity 
for agency drivers.  Furthermore, the revised refuse collection regime had 
required additional resource.

 Recyclables are sent to Deep Moor where they are baled and sold on.  The 
handling of recycling is an area of risk due to a fluctuating market influenced 
heavily by international factors. Payment took the form of recycling credits, 
so the more waste diverted from landfill to recycling means more recycling 
credits.  There was no provision for increased income from waste and 
recycling due to the risk associated with the volatility of the market.

 Food waste diverted to the anaerobic digester in Holsworthy forms part of 
the calculation relating to recycling credits as DCC is the waste disposal 
authority and they stipulate which sites waste has to be taken to.

 Councillor Pennington echoed support for Councillor Simmons’ proposal that  
the Committee lobby the MP for Torridge and West Devon about the Local 
Housing Allowance rate.

 The forecast relating to homelessness costs was based on an estimated 
6,500 nights of accommodation, 96 units and an average length of stay of 33 
says, equating to £300,000.

Members discussed solutions to the problems of homelessness, identifying 
pods and hostels as the most cost effective option which would be preferable 
to incurring repair and maintenance costs associated with authority owned 
housing stock.

 An evaluation of duty of care was currently being carried out and 20 cases 
have been identified as not eligible for assistance.

11.15 Councillor T Inch joined the meeting.

 A breakdown of statutory requirement v. desirable services was requested.  
The Strategic Manager (Resources) responded that, due to the complexities 
of the levels at which services are provided, this would entail a lot of work 
and would be difficult to achieve.  For example, the Council’s key priority is 
economic regeneration, which is not statutory.

Page 6



5

 Councillor Pennington requested that a representation be made by the 
Internal Overview & Resources Committee to Central Government regarding 
Council Tax funding of CSP.

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington, seconded by Councillor Cottle-Hunkin - 

That recommendations a) – e) be recommended to Full Council:

a) The assurance of the Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) of the robustness of 
the budget 2019/20 set out in section 12 of the report be noted.

b) The assumptions and forecast applied to develop the MTFS outlined in section 
14 be noted

c) The forecast deficit of £0.752m in the MTFS for 2023/24 be noted.

d) The risks associated with the Budget 2019/20 and MTFS outlined in section 16 
be noted.

e) That it be noted that a Joint Internal & External Scrutiny committee will review 
the grants made to external bodies for the financial year 2020/21.

It was proposed by Councillor Langmead, seconded by Councillor T Inch – 

That recommendations f) – k) be recommended to Full Council:

f) Torridge’s Band D Council Tax for 2019/20 be increased by £5 (3.15%) from 
£158.86 to £163.66 per year be approved.

g) The changes to Council Tax Discounts and Long Term Empty Premiums 
detailed in the separate report be approved.

h) £115k is top-sliced from the New Homes Bonus – Community Grants Allocation 
be approved

i) Torridge’s Net Revenue Budget 2019/20 is £10.149m be approved.

j) The contributions to the Council’s reserves as outlined in paragraph 10.4 be 
approved.

k) That the Head of Paid Service, Senior Management and the new council review 
and revise the strategic plan & priorities and prepare options to achieve the 
savings going forward be approved.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

It was proposed by Councillor Pennington and seconded by Councillor Langmead – 

That 

Page 7



6

l) a response be made to the relevant offices of Central Government raising 
concerns about the local authority settlements over the years and the 
uncertainty that it is creating.

(Vote: For – unanimous)

69.   PROPOSED CHANGES TO COUNCIL TAX LEGISLATION - LONG TERM 
EMPTY PROPERTIES 

The report, forming part of the overall report submitted to Community & Resources 
on the Budget 2019/20 & Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2023-24 and 
also including the recommendations from the Internal Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, was taken as read.

70.   NEW HOMES BONUS COMMUNITY GRANTS 

The report, forming part of the overall report submitted to Community & Resources 
on the Budget 2019/20 & Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-20 to 2023-24, 
was taken as read.

71.   CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN 

The Forward Plan was reviewed:

The Burton Art Gallery

The Burton Art gallery should have been reviewed in October 2018 but to date this 
had not happened.  The Chair sought assurance that the External Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee would carry out the review in the very near future.

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that a 5 year agreement was in place 
with the Burton Art Gallery and that the Joint Working Group established to review 
on External Grant Funding could incorporate this into their programme of work, 
which will be commencing looking for a review to be executed during the 2019 
calendar year.  It was noted that over the 5 year Period of the agreement the 
Burton Art Gallery stood to receive £1m in funding from Torridge District Council.

Harbour and Fishdock

The Strategic Manager (Resources) told the meeting that income figures for the 
harbour and the fishdock will be in the QBR

S106

To feature on the agenda of the April meeting.

External Grant Funding

A meeting of the Joint Working Group on External Grant Funding will be set up and

Page 8



7

a report will be brought back to the April meeting.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and closed at 11.54 am.

Chair: Date:

Page 9



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – 12 February 2019
Action List

Minute No. Action Person responsible for 
Action

Date
Contacted

Completed

Minute 34 GDPR

Produce GDPR and Data retention 
guidance for members leaving the 
Council in May next year and newly 
elected members

HR Manager e-mailed 
08/10/2018

Will be completed as part of 
induction.

Minute 58 Income Generation Strategy

Strategy document to be circulated 
together with dates for meeting of the 
T&F Group.

Strategic Manager 
(Resources)

21/12/18 Completed – Strategy e-mailed 
28/1/2019

Minute 60 Consideration of the Forward Plan – 
Economic Profile.  To acquire updated 
figures.

Strategic Manager 
(Resources)

21/12/18 Completed – Strategic Manager 
(Resources) reported that had 
been unable to obtain further 
updated figures, which is often 
the case as these type of reports 
are prepared some years after 
the release of data.

Minute 62 Matters Arising – Minute 55 - S106 
Agreements  
Report on the distribution of S106 
monies 

Planning & Economy 
Manager

13/02/2019 Completed
In the Members’ Bulletin dated 28 
January, Cllr Whitaker wrote that 
she had asked that Rachel 
Webdell to provide a report on 
S106 monies available and 
allocated to go in the Members’ 
Bulletin at the end of each month.

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 3



Minute 60 Consideration of the Forward Plan – 
Economic Profile

Work to be carried out in conjunction 
with External O&S – to speak to 
Planning & Economy Manager

Cllr Pennington 25/02/2019 Cllr Pennington to raise with 
External O&S.

Minute 69 
a)

Budget 2019/20, Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2019-20 To 2023-24

Local Housing Allowance rate –MP to 
be lobbied.

Cllr Hurley wrote to Geoffrey 
Cox and Kit Malthouse.  
However, not satisfied with 
the response he has written 
2 more times to Kit 
Malthouse.

Ongoing - further response 
awaited.

Minute 69 
b)

Councillor Pennington requested that a 
representation be made by the Internal 
Overview & Resources Committee to 
Central Government regarding Council 
Tax funding of CSP

Strategic Manager 
(Resources)

Minute 69 
c)

That a response be made to the 
relevant offices of Central Government 
raising concerns about the local 
authority settlements over the years 
and the uncertainty that it is creating.

Strategic Manager 
(Resources)

We are currently at the end of a 
4-year Government settlement.  
The Government is currently 
conducting a comprehensive 
review of how local government is 
funded going forward.  We are 
awaiting full details from the 
Government.

P
age 11



1

REPORT OF: Planning and Economy Manager    Reference:

To: Internal Overview and Scrutiny

Subject: Torridge District Council Play Space Strategy

Date:   20th February 2019

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To provide the Internal Overview and Scrutiny Committee with additional information in respect of 
the proposal to commission external consultants in the undertaking of a Play Strategy for the 
Authority. In particular, examination of the points raised by the Chairman:

 Does Torridge need a Play Strategy with the last one being some 12 years old?
 How do we proceed not knowing what we have and what we plan to do in the future?
 Have we the capacity to carry out an internal review?
 How does not having an up to date Strategy or a new internal one, affect our local plan?
 Can the work by the new local plan officers count as a Strategy or do they need guidance as 

to the council's position?

1. INTRODUCTION

At the Community and Resources Committee of 14th January 2019 Members refused a 
recommendation that a budget of £15,000 - £20,000 be made available from the Council’s Project 
Reserves to commission consultants to prepare a Torridge Play Space Strategy.

The Chair of Internal Overview and Scrutiny subsequently requested that further information be 
provided to Members with regard to the benefit to be gained and necessity for the proposed 
strategy, which this report seeks to provide.

2. REPORT

It is considered appropriate that investment in infrastructure, irrespective of the form is guided at a 
strategic level, to ensure a clear vision and objectives are established to guide delivery over an 
extended timescale. With regard to play space a long term strategic approach is considered to be 
necessary to enable the Council to more effectively manage, maintain and improve  the play spaces 
within its ownership and to ensure that play space delivered as a result of development is optimised 
to meet the expanding and changing needs of our communities.

The Council, through its Strategic Plan (2016-2020) has given a commitment to secure safe and 
heathy communities. A stated action within the Strategic Plan is to: facilitate opportunities for 
healthier lifestyles for all our constituents by enabling access to good recreational and cultural 
facilities. It is considered that an up to date play space strategy, together with the other recreation 
based strategies already in place (Torridge Built Facilities Strategy and the North Devon and 
Torridge Play Pitch Strategy) will enhance the delivery prospects of the identified action. 

In considering the need to commission consultants to prepare a new play pitch strategy, it was 
suggested that alternatively the 2007-2012 Torridge Play Strategy could be reviewed and refreshed. 
Your officers are of the view that the 2007-2012 strategy is outdated to an extent that it could not be 
updated and that a new strategy is required, which will allow the Council to articulate its vision and 
objectives for play provision. A strategy would be expected to:

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



2

 provide a strategic framework to guide future planning and funding allocations for play 
space, including opportunities to secure grant funding;

 provide, for play space within the Council’s ownership,  an action plan that sets priorities 
within an achievable and appropriate implementation programme;

 provide best practice guidelines that promote inclusion, improve design quality and refine 
management systems; 

 ensure that the design and upgrade of play spaces is achievable and sustainable within the 
Council’s resources; and 

 ensure the appropriate delivery, quality and future management of play space that is 
secured through the planning system to meet the needs generated by new development.

Play Space Assets
The Council owns 34 play spaces, which vary in size, nature, quality and likely longevity. The 
Council’s Property Team currently monitors and maintains its play facility assets to ensure they can 
be safely used. Members will be aware of the challenges that the Council faces financially to ensure 
that play space provision is maintained to meet community needs and the consequences of not 
doing so; if for example, play equipment is removed but not replaced.

It is proposed that through a play space strategy, a clear and concise direction relating to the 
Council’s current and future provision of play space would be provided. Through the strategy, the 
Council would have a better understanding of the capacity and outstanding lifespan of its play space 
assets and the gaps in play space provision as well as any potential overlaps. 

From an informed position, priorities in terms of capital expenditure, and how developer 
contributions towards play provision should be spent, can be established. With the benefit of 
identified priorities the Council will be better able to manage its assets and draw upon other funding 
opportunities to maintain and improve play provision.

To achieve the sought outcomes from a play space strategy, it is considered necessary to appoint 
consultants. While the Council do hold valuable information relating to its play space assets, which 
could be provided to appointed consultants, further expertise, together with an independent 
perspective, is required to bring forward the strategy; likewise an independent consultant will be 
able to assess play in the area from a holistic perspective not merely on its infrastructure and 
assets.

Members should also note that since the 2007-2012 Torridge Play Strategy was developed the 
Council’s workforce has shrunk considerably and therefore for bespoke pieces of work such as 
developing specific strategies it is often more cost effective to utilise external support.  Similarly, 
undertaking work doesn’t necessarily mean there isn’t a cost as officers would then have set aside 
other pieces of work to complete this specific  one-off task. 

New Play Space Provision
It is considered necessary from a planning perspective to have a strategic document relating to play 
space provision that can be used in conjunction with the recently adopted North Devon and Torridge 
Local Plan 2011-2031. Through the Local Plan infrastructure needs generated by development are 
secured through the planning process. In respect of play space, such needs will generally be 
required to be on-site, but developer contribution may be sought with the consideration of such 
matters as the level of generated need and the accessibly and quality of nearby provision.

The Local Plan established the basis for securing infrastructure generated by development and the 
standards that will be applied to Green Infrastructure, which includes play space. The addition of a 
play space strategy would assist with the implementation of the Local Plan by ensuring new play 
space provision is most appropriately located to meet the needs of the generating development and 
where developer contributions are secured, the resultant investment relates to established 
objectives and local priorities. 

Page 13



3

A play space strategy will support the decision making process on development proposals from 
which play space provision or contribution can be sought. Through the identification of play space 
priorities and geographically specific action plans the Council will be better able to meet the 
increasing and changing needs of its community. Having regard to a strategy, would add 
transparency to the decision making process and provide our communities with a better 
understanding of the Council play space priorities. Without such a strategy optimum advantage may 
not be secured in the delivery, maintenance and upgrading of play space that can be secured as a 
result of new development.  

3. IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None identified.

Financial Implications
Funding is required to appoint consultants to undertake a play space strategy; it is considered with 
regard to both expertise and available capacity that this project could not be undertaken internally. 
With regard to similar strategic studies relating to recreation (Torridge Built Facilities Strategy and 
the North Devon and Torridge Play Pitch Strategy) it is anticipated that to commission consultants to 
prepare a play space strategy would require a budget in the region of £15,000-£20,000 depending 
on the outcome of the procurement process. Of course through the Council’s procurement process, 
best value will be sought to achieve identified outputs. 

Human Resources Implications
Officer time would be required to: define the parameters of the project, in discussion with Members, 
through the preparation of a project brief; to manage the procurement process; to liaise with the 
appointed consultants during the preparation of the strategy who will provide specific expertise from 
within the sector and ensure its timely delivery, being prepared to a satisfactory standard. 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
The sustainability of a community is supported by access to a network of high quality open spaces 
and opportunities for sport and physical activity is important for the health and wellbeing of 
communities. 
There are no direct biodiversity issues arising from the proposed strategy, but such will be taken into 
account in the delivery of play space; North Devon and Torridge Local Plan Policy DM08: 
Biodiversity and Geodiversity will be applied where relevant.

Equality/Diversity
An up to date play space strategy would guide the Council in delivering play space requirements 
that reflect the needs of its communities both now and in the future; ensuring improvements in 
accessibility of play provision across all age groups.

Risk Management
Engaging external consultants will provide expertise to establish a framework to guide future 
planning and funding allocations for play space, including opportunities to secure grant funding. The 
absence of a strategic approach may impact on the overall gains that could be achieved through 
funding opportunities and by defining priorities within an achievable implementation programme.   

Compliance with Policies and Strategies
A play space strategy would sit alongside the Council’s other evidenced based strategic documents 
relating to sport and recreation (Torridge Built Facilities Strategy and the North Devon and Torridge 
Play Pitch Strategy) to ensure the existing and future needs of our communities are best served 
through the maintenance and delivery of sport and recreation facilities. 
Officers are in the process of preparing a Green Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD), which adds detail to policy contained in the North Devon and Torridge Local Plan, which will 
aid its implementation. The SPD will add detail to the delivery requirements both in terms of on-site 

Page 14



4

provision and off site contributions to secure the delivery of play space resulting from needs 
generating from both residential and commercial development. A play space strategy would provide 
a framework to guide project delivery, having regard to locally determined priorities, where on site 
delivery has not been achieved.

Lead Members Views 

Although I can understand the reluctance to endorse a request for up to 20k to support the work of 
consultants there is no doubt  in my mind that we do need to undertake a complete refresh of this 
Strategy. If we do not do so we will definitely limit the Councils ability to deliver appropriate play 
opportunities throughout the District and/or to ensure that schemes are maintained as we would 
wish.  I think that between 10 to 12,500k should enable this work to be undertaken and hope that 
Members at Internal scrutiny will agree. 

4. CONCLUSIONS

The Torridge Play Strategy 2007-2012, is out of date and ineffective both in respect of supporting 
the Council’s programme of play space maintenance and improvement and as a means of 
maximising the benefit to be derived from development that will generate a need for new play space 
provision. 

In the interest of clearly establishing the Council’s approach to play space in respect of its own 
assets, and maximising the benefit to be derived from future provision, it is necessary to prepare a 
new play space strategy for Torridge. It is further considered appropriate that consultants are 
appointed to undertake the project having regard to resource limitations within the Council, both in 
respect of expertise and capacity.  

5. RECOMMENDATIONS

1. It is recommended that Member’s review the decision of the Council’s Community and 
Resources Committee (14th January 2019) that rejected a recommendation for £15,000 - 
£20,000 to be provided, from the policy element of the Project Reserve ,to enable the  
commission of consultants to prepare a play space strategy for Torridge and that in light of 
more detailed information on the need for external support recommend the original 
recommendation be approved .

2. If Members are not minded to support the use of funds from the Project Reserve, but agree 
to the need to commission consultants to prepare a play strategy an alternative budget 
source is required to be identified.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Play strategy 2007 - 2012

Consultations: Date of Consultation –  29.01.2019

Officers Consulted  
Sean Kearney (Planning and Economy Manager) 
Dawn Burgess (Senior Planning Policy Officer)
Steve Hearse (Joint Head of Finance)
Staci Dorey (Solicitor)

                                                           
Members consulted – Cllr J. Whittaker 
Contact Officer: Sean Kearney                      

Page 15



5

                                 
                                                                      

Page 16



Description

1 Highlights 1 to 2

2 Income & Salaries Monitoring 3

3 Revenue & Capital 4 to 5

4 Goal 1 - Prosperous & Sustainable Economy 6 to 7

Goal 2 - Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities 8 to 10

Goal 3 - Protecting & Enhancing our Quality Environment 11 to 12

Goal 4 - An Effective & Customer Focused Council 13 to 15

Page

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL

Contents:

Quarterly Business Report (QBR)

To end of December 2018

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



Performance Highlights December 2018

Not shown in Report but Monitored:-  
FOI Requests - The number of FOI requests continues to grow totalling 507 so far this year compared to 445 last 
year (+14%). Despite this 100% have been responded to within the statutory time limit of 20 working days. 
 

Planning - Improvement in determination times has been maintained as shown under Goal 4 of the report. Validation 
(not shown) has also improved with the average in the main areas of demand, minors and others, reducing to 10.5 
days from 16.5 (-36%). There are still a high number of invalid applications received affecting this measure but with 
the production of a new local list it is anticipated that there will be further improvements.  
 
Report shows 19% reduction in properties added to the Council Tax database which may affect New Homes Bonus. 
33% reduction in new homes provided which mirrors a slow down in the housing market also affecting income - see 
Goal 2 planning policy measures. 
 
Leisure Centres - Membership is 12% higher although attendances are 12% down. The Summer was very hot and it 
is likely outdoor activities took precedence for many. Torridge Pool was also closed for a few weeks for maintenance. 
While there has been a national decline in swimming activity generally it would seem that 2017/18 may have been a 
bit of an anomaly in terms of attendance. Operating cashless centres may also have been an impact.  
 
Business Rate Collection - Collection rate is currently 2.27% behind last year (each % is approximately £100K). 
Explanation provided under Goal 4.  
 
Visitors to Reception Points - Although previously reducing year on year, overall numbers are similar to last year 
(20K) mainly due to visits to request recycling containers following service changes in June 18.  We also note that 
since the move to one site at Riverbank Dec-Jan figures show a reduction of 34% (3.9K to 2.6K) compared to last 
year. Not unexpectedly (see budget monitoring) Housing Options have seen a 15% rise to just over 2K for the year.  
 
Budget Monitoring:-  Net variance on budget is showing a predicted overspend of £224K (£294K Q2). 
 
The overspend is largely made up of additional staffing costs in planning £68K, and also £188K increased costs 
arising from the new waste service implementation. Legal fees currently stand at £188K (£90K Q2), some of which 
may be recoverable. Savings and better income in other areas bring the net figure down.  
 
The net Waste forecast overspend has reduced to £47k. The value of the cost share contribution from DCC as a 
result of diversion from landfill has not yet been finalised and this may exceed the budget given the better than 
forecast tonnages diverted. Green waste subscriptions have also exceeded budget by £86K. 
 
£247K (£191k Q2) Housing Benefit Subsidy Shortfall – The projected subsidy shortfall is due to two factors as 
previously reported:  
 
1:Increased Homelessness Referrals leading to increased usage of B&B accommodation. Where the Council incurs 
costs pertaining to housing individuals/families in B&B accommodation, it is only partly reimbursed via Housing 
Benefit subsidy. Housing Benefit will reimburse the Council at the LHA (Local Housing Allowance) rate, currently 
£93.46 per week for an individual in North Devon. B&B placements at establishments such as the Premier Inn and 
Travel Lodge can easily exceed £90 per night, with weekly shortfalls for one individual placement often exceeding 
£400. The problem is compounded by the lack of suitable affordable long term accommodation within the privately 
rented sector, resulting in extended stays in B&B accommodation. 
 
2:The Council also incurs a shortfall in Housing Benefit Subsidy with regards to supported tenancies, where the 
establishment is not registered as a social landlord. The Council only receives partial reimbursement from Housing 
Benefit for these cases. Currently there are two establishments within Torridge (Charis and the Bideford Life House 
Project) which result in a subsidy shortfall to the Council. 
 
Income:-  Total income was -£61K / -2.5% (Q2 +£45 / +2.6%) under budget and -£90K / -3.7% (Q2 -£56K / -3%) 
below last year - see notes on income page 2. 
   
Salaries:-  Although the current spend is below Budget by -£125K the forecast is for a variance of +£153K (+£146k 
Q2) overspend at year end (+1.8% over budget). See notes on page 2. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1Page 18



Performance Highlights contd.. December 2018

 
The legal and property teams undertake substantial work drafting and amending lease agreements for tenants. 
Currently no charges are made for this service. The Council’s Constitution (5.3.2) allows the Section 151 officer to 
approve amendments to the Council’s Fees and Charges, which has  been done to avoid loss of income. The data 
below shows the new fees pertaining to lease agreements 
  
Description                                                                                                                                           Gross Fee* 
Administration/Set Up Fee                                                                                                                        £72 
Termination Fee (if termination occurs within the first year of the term)                                                   £ 72 
Termination Fee (if termination occurs after the first year of the term)                                                     £48 
Amendments (which require a change in the original Lease)                                                                   £ 36 
Deed of Surrender (termination of lease prior to end of the Break Notice) + Termination Fee as above £36  
Garden Lease Administration Fee                                                                                                            £30 
Garden Lease Termination Fee                                                                                                                £30 
 
* VAT is chargeable where the option to tax the property has been exercised 
  
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution Internal O&S are requested to formally recommend to C&R 
inclusion of the charges above into the Council’s Fees and Charges. 

Page 2Page 19



Income Monitoring December 2018

Positive variance to Budget

Neutral variance to Budget

Negative variance to Budget

Description
Service 

Managers

Total Year 

to Date

Total same 

time last 

year

YTD 

Budgeted

2018/2019 

Budget

2017/2018 

Actual

2016/17

Actual

2015/2016

Actual

Pay & Display
Sean 

Kearney
£866,414 £867,252 £884,497 £1,101,850 £1,069,011 £1,060,874 £946,469

Development Management
Sean 

Kearney
£421,966 £539,764 £480,000 £640,000 £725,158 £621,993 £730,987

Rental Income (Corporate 

Property & Caddsdown)

Adrian 

Redwood
£492,699 £467,230 £438,406 £545,896 £537,026 £477,152 £423,663

Building Control
Sean 

Kearney
£168,052 £157,618 £195,318 £247,924 £209,525 £240,631 £217,232

Harbour
Sean 

Kearney
£36,460 £61,417 £82,054 £99,871 £90,793 £81,407 £99,701

Land Charges Staci Dorey £84,944 £86,491 £95,250 £127,000 £112,049 £128,580 £158,723

Licensing
Janet 

Williams
£107,252 £117,212 £95,952 £115,500 £118,670 £115,532 £130,865

Northam Burrows
Sean 

Kearney
£128,883 £101,213 £97,347 £97,347 £101,276 £108,913 £83,092

Car Parking Penalty Charge 

Notices

Sean 

Kearney
£56,710 £55,533 £55,935 £74,580 £71,408 £63,599 £69,649

Totals Receipts from above £2,363,380 £2,453,731 £2,424,759 £3,049,968 £3,034,916 £2,898,681 £2,860,381

Notes on Income

Salaries Monitoring

Total Year 

to Date

Total Same 

Time Last 

Year

YTD 

Budgeted

2018/2019 

Budget

2017/2018 

Actual

2016/17

Actual

2015/2016

Actual

£6,210,607 £5,644,844 £6,335,836 £8,334,980 £7,605,678 £7,589,081 £6,936,578

Notes on Salaries

Although the current spend is below Budget the forecast is for a variance of +£153K (+£146k Q2) overspend at year 

end (+1.8% of budget). The increase in budget between 17/18 and 18/19 is due to a higher pay award for staff and 

the impact of increased Waste and Recycling staff numbers +£188K (previously employed through an agency) and 

agency backfill, maternity leave and relocation costs in planning +£68K. This is offset by -£103K savings in other 

services.

ANNUAL FIGURES

Net Salaries

(salaries + overtime, NI, 

superannuation, vacancy savings, 

agency costs)

December 2018

Harbour - -£46K against budget -£25K against last year. operations have been very quiet this year and there is little 

sign of a change in the short term. The Harbour Master has been trying to stimulate new business and is attempting 

to make contact with other ports (in the UK and Ireland) in search of ideas for how fortunes might be reversed.

Land Charges - Income is only around -£2K / -2% below last year but -£10K / -10% against budget due to a slowing 

housing market. In recognition that this is likely to continue for a period the proposed budget for 2019/20 has been 

reduced by £10K.

Overall income to the end of Q3 was -£61K / -2.5% (Q2 +45K / +2.6%) against budget and -£90K / -3.7% (Q2 -£56K 

/ -3%) down on last year. Explained as follows:

Development Management - -£58K against budget -£118K against last year. There is an expectation that there will 

be an up-turn in applications where the outline sites move forward to the reserved matters stage. Other Local Plan 

allocations are expected to come forward based on an updated Housing trajectory which will be prepared in June 

2019.

Building Control - -£27K against budget +£10K against last year. Affected by slowdown in development noted 

above but above last years figure.

Page 3Page 20



Budget Monitoring July unadjusted

Profiled              

Budget

Actual                 

To Date

Service responsibility centre Full year Budget Projection to 

Year end

Worse than 

budget

Better than 

budget

Net Variance

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Revenue monitoring
1,514,970 1,456,865 Solicitor 1,913,305 1,906,679 6,626 l

2,496,806 4,405,340 Strategic Manager (Resources) 4,754,414 4,988,437 234,023 l

2,302,093 2,395,449 Strategic Manager (Services) 3,244,364 3,311,557 67,193 l

325,112 142,225 Planning and Development 395,364 561,108 165,744 l

11,206,454 919,469 Funding (10,307,447) (10,543,900) 236,453 l

4,567,473 7,480,410 Head of Paid Services 223,881 466,960 243,079 223,881

Highlights

Summary of variances identified £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue Funding

Homelessness B&B (less HB income) (23)

Homelessness - Hostel income (30)

Housing benefit subsidy shortfall (B&B and support tenancies) 247 

Net Homelessness Variance 194 

Staffing costs - Planning* 68 

Planning income 77 

Planning - Professional Fees & Supplies & Services 21 

Net plannning service variance** 166 

Staffing costs - Waste service* 188 

Transport Related Costs (47)

Contractors 16 

Greenwaste subscriptions exceeding budget (86)

Recycling Credit Income (34)

Other Supplies & Services 24 

Net waste service variance*** 61 

Staffing costs - Other* (103)

New Burdens Grant Income (60)

Building Control & Land Charges Income 35 

Professional fees - £137k - ongoing legal cases (possibly recoverable from third party) 188 

Legal - Recovery of costs (17)

Premises costs (38)

VAT Shelter (pertains to former Council Housing) (21)

Interest receivable and interest payable (46)

Car Parking Income (Season Tickets & Northam Burrows) ` (59)

Car Parking Income (Wilkeys Field delivery delayed) 40 

Harbour income 43 

External audit saving (15)

Rentals and other income (12)

Other Grant Income (12)

Insurance 10 

Third party services 43 

Members Related Expenditure (11)

Council Tax Collection Costs (13)

Software 7 

Crematorium distribution (47)

Under and over spends less than £5k 21 

Additional contribution to reserve arising from membership of Devon Business Rate Pilot 106 (106) ****

Release of Business Rate Levy Surplus (35)

Additional S31 Grant for Business Rates (39)

Renewable energy surplus released from prior year (56)

Revenue - Funding variance  totals 460 (236)
Net variance 224 

* The Council has a vacancy target of £100k, salary savings have been realised to meet this target, the projected salary

over spend of £153k pertains largely to two service areas; Refuse Collection and Planning.

   Refuse Collection     - £188k   Increased costs arising from implementation of revised recycling rounds

   Planning                  -  £68k     Agency backfill of vacancies and Maternity Leave plus relocation costs

   Other                      - (£103k)   Net savings in other services

December 2018

Other factors also include:

• Agency Spend – a proportion of the expenditure for the agency staff is not physically paid within the period as there are timing 

issuing relating to the processing of invoices; however it is included in the projected spend

• Within the Council’s salary related budgets are contributions to the Council’s underlying pension deficit, circa £60k per month, at 

the end of QBR3 the Council had only made payment for 8 months

• The forecast salary expenditure includes assumptions regarding appointments to vacant posts.

Page 4

Page 21



£'000

Local Plan Enquiry Reserve 90

Future Service Delivery Reserve 47

DWP LHA Funding 48

Total 185

Capital and Reserves
Capital Expenditure

Programme  Net Capital Spent Net Capital Gross Capital

Area Programme to Programme Programme

budget 31 Dec budget budget

2018/19 cfwd 2018/19

£ £ £ £

ICT Related 215,827 107,877 90,658 215,827

Vehicles 2,021,547 1,629,203 392,344 2,021,547

Property/Infrastructure 8,080,025 1,012,998 7,067,027 8,080,025 1

Regeneration 3,372,151 40,888 3,331,263 3,547,151

Culture & Sport 125,000 9,667 115,333 125,000

Housing 1,126,110 856,165 269,945 2,301,039

Environment 327,000 327,000 327,000

Capital progamme progress 15,267,661 3,656,798 11,593,571 16,617,590

Note 1:  Disabled Facilities Grant of £890k received in advance of spend

Earmarked Reserves

Balance Receipts Spend Transfers

01 April to Date to Date Balance 

1  +2  -3  +/- 4 5

£ £ £ £ £

Earmarked Revenue reserves 4,574,587 1,196,683 615,607 1,620,603 3,535,059

Earmarked Capital Reserves 6,578,314 941,071 27,165 1,620,603 9,112,823

Section 106 Reserves & Receipts 244,110 86,484 330,594

Grand Total 11,397,011 2,224,238 642,772 12,978,476

Commitments:    Revenue Approved 397,219

Revenue Proposed 1,845,536

                             Capital Approved 8,629,512

S106 allocated 330,594

Balance carried forward (Revenue Commitments yet to be updated) 1,775,616

Investments

Current Investments Average rate of return 0.81% Amount

Deposit A/c 5,045,000
Total on deposit 19,045,000

** The net Planning overspend of £166k will be reduced by a transfer of £90k from the Local Plan Enquiry Reserve should the 

planning income not improve

*** The net Waste forecast overspend has reduced to £47k.  Please note that the value of the the cost share contribution from DCC 

as a result of diversion from landfill has not yet been finalised and this may exceed the budget given the better than forecast 

tonnages diverted.

****  The following reserves have been identified to partly offset the projected over spend, the balance of £39k to be met from the 

Transition in Government Funding Reserve

December 2018

Page 5

Page 22



Goal 1 - Developing a prosperous & Sustainable Economy Actions December 2018

Progress Service

Economic 

Regen

ER2.C

TDC 2 Skilled, Adaptable Workforce matched to business growth requirements.

Economic 

Regen

ER4.C

TDC 3 Encourage, support important employment sectors & projects.

Economic 

Regen

ER5.C

Action Comments

The Northern Devon Digital Strategy was released to the 

business and digital communities and will now be sent to the 

Programme Board in January. This is the first rural digital strategy 

in the country and will provide huge opportunities to use this 

document to signpost the region's digital ambitions and to 

campaign for further investment in infrastructure and skills in the 

area. This will continue to ensure that businesses can relocate to 

all parts of Torridge confident that broadband speeds are national 

leaders. 

A public-private partnership Innovation Board has now been 

established as well in order to steer future opportunities, for 

example making the most of possibilities presented by 

forthcoming innovation projects at Petroc and the Enterprise 

Centre at Roundswell being developed by DCC.         

The Invest in Northern Devon website continues to receive 

intermittent queries, although at present the majority are from 

existing residents of the area looking for additional funding 

opportunities.

Infrastructure and Employment Space.

Provide serviced employment land, increased 

employment and income to the Council.

1. Development of Caddsdown Phase 3 -  Scheme 

redesign for Cleave Wood to facilitate the delivery of 

employment land and Caddsdown Phase 3 and  

housing and community facilities at Cleave Wood 

(Extended from 16/17 delivery 19/20) 

2.  Holsworthy Employment Land on new 

AgriBusiness site 

3. Torrington in association with New Depot. 

(Extended from 17/18 to Q3 - 20/21)

ND+ - Support and monitor existing partnerships to 

maximise funding opportunities and ensure delivery 

of Council priorities and value for money, and 

community and Business / Enterprise Support.

North Devon + performance managed.

(Q1 to Q4)

LEADER 5 Programme - Funding support for a 

number of projects across the Council area and 

development of new LEADER proposals (£15K 

Budget per year to 2020) 

(Q1 to 2020)

Delivery ERDF Business Support Contract. (Q1-4) 

LEADER 5 funding is now on the verge of being fully assigned. 

There are a number of projects still in the pipeline for funding but 

the programme is now closed for new applications.

Activities to market the ERDF Business Support Contract have 

also been stepped up as evaluations were indicating that those 

participants who had taken up the plan were primarily stopping 

after 3 of the 12 allotted hours (the first phase of support).

TDC 1 Growth & expansion of existing businesses, increase the number of new businesses, and inward investment into 

the area.

Inward Investment / Investment in Growth.

Develop and adopt an Inward Investment strategy 

and deliver associated actions in Partnership with 

NDC. (Q1-4 deferred from 17/18)

1. No progress in Q1 but meetings were held with the current 

owners of the Caddsdown Phase 3 site in July 2018 to discuss 

planning proposals. Further meetings were held in August 2018 to 

emphasise the importance of the Economic Development land to 

the district's growth plans. 

2. No progress at Holsworthy to report.

3. A brief has been sent out to possible consultants for an 

Employment Space analysis in Torrington.

Page 6Page 23



Goal 1 - Prosperous & Sustainable Economy Actions December 2018

Progress Service

Economic 

Regen

ER6.C

Economic 

Regen

ER7.C

Goal 1 - Prosperous & Sustainable Economy Performance Measures December 2018

Economic Regeneration

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

Q Q

Q Q

2.9% No New

Q Q

Q Q

2.5% 0.0%

Business Investment Scheme

Devise and deliver a business investment scheme 

that enables the council to invest in innovative small 

business ventures (Q3)

A further report is being developed with a view to submitting it for 

C&R in March 2019. Additional consultations have taken place 

with North Devon+ and an independent accountant in order to 

ensure that the scheme is manageable and can achieve the 

maximum possible impact to allow a business to recruit for the 

first time.

Unemployment % (proportion of 

economically active - model 

based rather than count)

Sept 17

3.4%

SW 3.5%

GB 4.5%

-

Sept 17

3.4%

SW 3.5%

GB 4.5%

-

ANNUAL FIGURES

Sept 16

5.1%

SW 4.1%

GB 4.9%

3. Initial conversations have taken place with the Bideford Town 

Centre Partnership and the Bideford Town Council about 

possibilities for the Future High Streets Fund, reflecting on issues 

that they feel impact on the wellbeing of the town centre. 

However, the proposal for a Land Train for Bideford has not been 

successful and was blocked by restrictions imposed by Devon 

Highways. 

The first successful Crowdfunder campaign in Torridge was 

supported by the Economic Development team, allowing 

additional investment to be brought in to support Councillors' 

grant allocations. This ensured that the Little Green Town project, 

designed to permit and support community opportunities to 

beautify Bideford town centre's neglected spaces, will be able to 

recruit and come in to action in Q4.

4. Holsworthy - No specific progress in Q1-Q3. although a 

contract for Electric Vehicle charging points in all areas is due to 

be signed in January with installation to be arranged for February 

and March including Holsworthy.

Regeneration of sites and settlements to increase 

the economic potential of the area

1. Westward Ho! Enhancement Projects.  

2. Torrington Regeneration proposals.

3. Assist Bideford Town Centre Vision

4. Delivery of Holsworthy Actions

(Q1 to 19/20)

1. The Expression of Interest to redevelop the Burrows Centre 

has been approved. The project will therefore move in to Phase 

2, requiring a full business plan in order to explore the case for 

the project and to justify the request for £1.2million of funding 

from the Coastal Communities Fund.

2. Genesis have pulled out of their management arrangement for 

the Pannier Market in Torrington and so TDC will step back in to 

manage the site from 1st April 2019. TDC is in the process of 

organising a meeting with all traders to set out processes and 

plans going forward. The community and traders have reacted 

very positively to the news that TDC will manage the site again, 

and the Economic Development team have also begun to work 

more closely with the Chamber of Trade, who will continue to 

manage the organisation of markets. 

Action Comments

Description
Total Year to 

Date

LE236

Measure

Sept 15

4.9%

SW 4.1%

GB 5.4%

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

2015/16 

Actual

Total same 

time last year

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target

Sept 18

2.5%

SW 2.9%

GB 4.2%

Page 7Page 24



Goal 2 Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities Actions December 2018

Progress Service

TDC 4 Engaging & Empowering Inclusive Communities

Planning 

Policy

PP4.C

TDC 5 Safe and Healthy Communities

Housing 

Renewal

HREN1.S

Enviro 

Control

EP1.S

Action

Development of the Neighbourhood Enforcement 

Team.

1) Review of nuisance processes including 

development of mobile working to improve 

efficiency/effectiveness

2) Review of the 'Noise App' resource.

3) Promotion of the work of the team to members, 

Parish Councils and the public to improve profile of 

team. 

(Q1-4)

1. Current "as is" process has been mapped in preparation, but 

we need to gather data to inform the review. In terms of publicity, 

the recent WWH! noise case has garnered good publicity with the 

public and members, and as an ongoing case will be highlighted 

further.

2. Use and experience of the 'Noise App' has been raised at the 

Devon Environmental Protection Group. The feedback has been 

generally positive. There is a plan to visit a neighbouring authority 

where the system is used to see it in action. Results of this will 

feed into the review.

3. The noise information on the website has been reviewed and 

more supporting info added 

https://www.torridge.gov.uk/article/559/Noise-and-other-

nuisances 

Comments

Empty Properties.

1) Determine work plan to progress empty property 

project including consideration of resources 

available/needed.

2) Re-establish working group tasked with 

progressing EP work plan

3) Promotion of a range of options for owners of 

empty properties to bring them back into use and 

develop engagement programme on targeted 

properties. 

4) Where necessary, use of range of enforcement  

tools, overseen through the Empty Properties 

working group

(Q1-4)

Housing resources have so far this year been taken up with 

energy efficiency projects across Torridge (£3M grant 

distribution), maintaining the Disabled Facilities Grants function 

through the maternity leave of the officer responsible, and recent 

vacancy and recruitment to the housing enforcement post. 

It continues to be an extremely busy time for the Housing 

Renewal team and so there has been no resource to make a start 

on the empty properties project and at the current time it is 

difficult to predict when this might be commenced. 

ND & TDC Traveller Site Allocations Development 

Plan Document.

1. Assessment identifying potential sites for traveller 

accommodation; incorporating a call for sites, 

seeking potential sites for both transit and 

permanent provision to address evidenced needs.

2. Scope, draft and consult on a Development Plan 

Document to provide appropriate traveller 

accommodation.

3. Submit draft Development Plan Document to 

Secretary of State for examination; and

4. Carry out steps required to enable adoption of 

Development Plan Document.

(Q2-18/19 to 20/21 deferred from 17/18)

A scoping consultation on the Traveller Site Allocations 

Development Plan Document (TSA DPD) was undertaken during 

September and October 2016. Consultants were subsequently 

appointed to assist with the identification and assessment of 

potential sites to deliver permanent and transit traveller 

accommodation; through the preparation of a traveller site 

assessment. 

A draft Report associated to the traveller site assessment was 

provided to the Councils in August 2018, with a draft of the Final 

Report subsequently received in February 2019. Officers are 

currently reviewing the final Draft Report and would anticipate it to 

be signed off in early March 2019. Progression of the TSA DPD 

was reliant upon a successful conclusion to the examination of 

the North Devon and Torridge Local Plan (NDTLP) and 

confirmation of the acceptability of the provisions contained within 

it. The Local Plan was adopted at a joint Full Council meeting on 

29th October 2018 and this provides the opportunity to re-

commence work on the TSA DPD as resources allow.

Page 8Page 25



Goal 2 Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities Performance Measures December 2018

Food & Safety

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

1.1% 1.2%

0.9% 1.1%

1.2% 1.0%

1.4% 0.0%

1.4% 0.0%

1.4% 0.0%

0 0

0 0

1 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

Housing

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

Q Q

Q Q

0 0

Q Q

Q Q

0 0

244 309

188 167

249 179

351 223

200 0

118 0

Q Q

Q Q

No Data 22

Q Q

Q Q

No Data 0

BV064

NI156

8/628

(1.3%)
1% 3%

5/568

(0.9%)

Number of Food Establishments 

poorly rated 0 to 2 compared to 

total rated

BV064

7/670

1.0%
3%

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

2015/16 

Actual

ANNUAL FIGURES

Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target

7/638

1.1%

0

LE546 200 200 385

3 4 0

LE352

End to End time for processing 

Disabled Facility grants

Members of the public reported 

accidents on Council premises

Number of vacant non-LA 

properties brought back into use 

or put on the market for use or 

development.

0

Measure

LE373

Measure Description

NI156

Notes on 'Red' Performance Measures

Average Number of households living in 

temporary accommodation

Number of vacant non-LA properties 

brought back into use or put on the market 

for use or development.

Average Number of households 

living in temporary 

accommodation

1 - -

There has been a 29% increase in households living in Temporary 

Accommodation compared to the same time last year, this is due to a number of 

factors including: Ongoing welfare reform, the introduction of the Homelessness 

Reduction Act and a lack of affordable housing based on the Local Housing 

Allowance Rates that are set by central government.

2 2

297

0

4

18 1613

0

ANNUAL FIGURES

13

494223 260

0

1117

No progress on this action to date.

Description
Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

2015/16 

Actual

22

Page 9Page 26



Goal 2 Stronger, Safer, Healthier Communities Performance Measures December 2018

Planning Policy

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

Q Q

Q Q

48 46

Q Q

Q Q

40 0

Q Q

Q Q

0 0

Q Q

Q Q

12 0

14 19

10 32

1 4

21 0

42 0

29 0

NI154

NI155

LE140

Revenues & Benefits

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

16.6 17.1

19.1 17.6

21.4 24.9

19.5 0.0

18.7 0.0

13.9 0.0

5.7 5.7

4.1 5.4

4.4 6.1

4.9 0.0

6.0 0.0

5.0 0.0

80 41

76 32

87 27

85 0

45 0

30 0

354

BV078b

0

New HB Claims - Benefits 

Processing (Days)
18.7

NI155

Net Additional Homes Provided 134

12

18.8

Number additional properties 

added to the Council Tax data 

base.

11

16.0

Changes - HB Benefits 

Processing (Days)

19.4 16.0

5.0

16.0

n/a 588

Number of Affordable homes delivered 

(gross)

The level of Affordable Housing delivery is particularly low due to the current low 

level of overall house building across the District of Torridge, This has a knock-

on effect in terms of delivery of affordable where this has been secured as part 

of a Section 106 agreement. With the implementation of the new Local Plan, the 

Exception site policies are now operational which should help increase delivery 

going forward particularly in rural areas.

Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

2015/16 

Actual

Net Additional Homes Provided The level of house building activity within Torridge remains significantly 

supressed, with very limited amounts of housing currently being delivered from 

larger developments and activity associated to the mainstream housing 

developers. With the adoption of the Local Plan and the  housing allocations 

starting to be taken up, the scale of additional homes being provided across 

Torridge should increase; however this is, in part, influenced by market 

conditions. The Council's role in, and need to focus on, the timely progression of 

planning applications for housing is recognised, however there is an increasing 

Government expectation for the Council to take up a wider role in facilitating the 

delivery of housing; a role which is likely to be required to support the delivery of 

sufficient housing to meet identified needs.

16.0

Year to date 

Target

ANNUAL FIGURES

LE140 172

Number of Affordable homes 

delivered (gross)
98

253n/a

130 36

369262

201

213

1,171 1,089

5.0

LE217
Total Number of New Benefit 

Claims
503 1,335

6.8 4.56.1

-

5.0

863 -

5.2

BV078a

Measure

Notes on 'Red' Performance Measures

Number additional properties added to the 

Council Tax data base.

The number of net additional properties being added to the Council Tax base 

remains suppressed, aligning with the low levels of house building activity (see 

NI154). This has the effect of providing reduced levels of New Homes Bonus 

and lower levels of increase in Council Tax receipts. 

Description
Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

NI154

2018/19 

Target

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

2015/16 

Actual

Measure Description

n/a 437

50

n/a

ANNUAL FIGURES

Page 10Page 27



Goal 3 Protecting & Enhancing our Quality Environment Actions December 2018

Progress Service

TDC 6 Reduced Carbon footprint of residents & businesses.

Waste

W1.C

TDC 8 Quality urban environment - maintained historic buildings, well designed modern sustainable development.

Goal 3 Protecting & Enhancing our Quality Environment Performance December 2018

Waste Management

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

Q Q

Q Q

20.14% 26.52%

Q Q

Q Q

22.16% 0.00%

Q Q

Q Q

30.48% 25.21%

Q Q

Q Q

30.32% 0.00%

Q Q

Q Q

50.80% 51.62%

Q Q

Q Q

52.66% 0.00%

Q Q

Q Q

109 84

Q Q

Q Q

85 0

Measure Description
Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

ANNUAL FIGURES

2015/16 

Actual

18.02%

Year to date 

Target

BV082a

Action Comments

3. The new chargeable garden waste service has had a 

successful first year with 11,878 subscribers. Customers have 

been subscribing throughout the year. Preparations are now 

being made for the second year of the chargeable service.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

TDC 7 Protection & enhancement of coastal & rural environments as beautiful landscapes, important habitats, economic 

assets.

499Kg

17.31% 21.10% 17.10% 17.60%19.00%26.52%

278Kg

51.62% 40.17% 37.70% 42.61%

25.10% 22.86%

41.20%

24.66%16.60% 24.10% 24.59%24.00%

Waste Review

1. Implement new Waste and Recycling Service.

To introduce enhanced recycling service for 

Torridge residents, weekly food waste, additional 

plastics, fortnightly residual waste. (Q1-2)

2. Depot Relocation.

To source a site or parcel of land that is suitable to 

relocate all Waste and Recycling resources. Also 

suitable to undertake baling and segregation of 

materials collected at the kerbside. 

(Q2 18/19-19/20)

3. Implement Savings.

Introduction of chargeable Garden Waste Service. 

(Q1-2)

1. New Service started on the 4th June 2018 with the introduction 

of separate food waste collection. Putout and participation rates 

have exceeded all expectations as the provisional figures for Q3 

show. Residual waste levels remain consistently lower than the 

preceding year.     

2. The recycling fleet is now tipping the collected material at a 

newly adapted site at Deep Moor. The old in-vessel compost site 

has been converted into a recycling transfer station.

All refuse collected is now taken to a new waste transfer station 

rather than to Deep Moor Landfill. The waste deposited at the 

transfer station is shipped by Devon County Councils new 

contractor Suez to an energy from waste site. It is hoped that 

using the new transfer station will result in saved time for the 

refuse crews and less wear and tear on the refuse fleet.

Options for a new depot for the authority are still being pursued.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

359Kg 494Kg353Kg

43.00% 42.26%

503Kg481Kg
Residual Household Waste per 

Household (Kg)

Composting

(Food & Garden Waste + Leaf 

Collection)

NI191

2018/19 

Target

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

Total RecyclingNI192

Dry Recycling Rate

BV082b

Page 11Page 28



Goal 4 - TDC 12 - An Effective and Customer Focused Council December 2018

Building Control

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

Q Q

Q Q

4.2 2.9

Q Q

Q Q

3.0 0.0

Q Q

Q Q

16.0 5.1

Q Q

Q Q

11.4 0.0

Development Management Progress Service

Dev 

Managmt

DM1.S

10.5

ANNUAL FIGURES

2.4 2.3

12.0

2015/16 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

2.4 2.5

Measure Description
2017/18 

Actual

2.5

Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target

LE150

2. Improve customer experience and 

communication, more efficient processes, improve 

consistency and timeliness, better working 

environment.

Planning Improvement Plan

1. Develop and Implement comprehensive 

Improvement Plan.

2.1

11.49.9

Comments

3.4

End to End time for Full Plans 

(Days)
9.312.0LE151

End to End time for Building 

Notices (Days)

10.8

1. Following on from our focus on resolving historic Section 106 

agreements this work has been largely completed. We will now 

carry this focus forward for any future agreements. 

Further actions are now being drafted.

2. Team performance - All planning officers now have 

manageable workloads and this is mainly due to a significant 

drive in determining planning applications.

Following the introduction of the Planning Portal admin fee there 

has been a noticeable decrease in electronic applications 

submitted via this means. An additional electronic system 

(iApply) for submitting applications is now in place and a number 

of applications are trickling through. There are still a 

considerable number of invalid applications however with the 

creation of a new Local List we anticipate this number to drop 

significantly and the receipt to valid turnaround times to improve.

Page 12Page 29



Goal 4 - TDC 12 - An Effective and Customer Focused Council December 2018

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

65 87

69 73

82 59

68 0

80 0

79 0

66 63

91 63

79 62

64 0

70 0

57 0

70.8% 77.8%

70.8% 80.7%

73.0% 81.5%

73.7% 0.0%

74.4% 0.0%

76.7% 0.0%

66.7% 92.3%

54.6% 98.0%

59.2% 95.0%

88.0% 0.0%

86.1% 0.0%

90.0% 0.0%

78.6% 94.4%

79.2% 100.0%

62.8% 78.3%

93.3% 0.0%

84.6% 0.0%

87.2% 0.0%

50 47

56 46

57 40

47 0

51 0

54 0

Q Q

Q Q

4/7 1/6

Q Q

Q Q

5.5/12 0.0

LE168

a

75 66

80.0%

68

E2E time for processing Minor 

(<10 new dwellings) Valid to 

Decision - Days

Description

74

2017/18 

Actual

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target

ANNUAL FIGURES

Total Year to 

Date

Total same 

time last year

60

78.6%

2015/16 

Actual

7756

Measure

5675

80.0% 80.0% 87.7% 89.4%

59

60.0%73.1% 71.8% 84.9%60.0%

675669

2016/17 

Actual

75.6%86.9%85.9% 80.0%81.9%

44

80.8%

18/57

(32%)

13/36

(36%)

32

11/35

(31%)

17/37

(46%)

3428

30% 30%

87.0%

Majors - % Determined in 13 

Weeks 2 Year Average

Minors - % Determined in 8 

Weeks
NI157b

81.5%

Number of appeals Lost / Total 

number of appeals

10.5/25

(42%)

E2E Pre App's (Chargeable No 

Meetings) - Days Valid to 

Response

NI157c
Others - % Determined in 8 

Weeks
84.1%

LE168a 50

56

LE161b

LE161c

NI157

E2E time for processing Other 

(Householders, C of use, Listed, 

Demolition etc) Valid to Decision - 

Days

83.6%

E2E Pre App's (Chargeable No Meetings) - 

Days Valid to Response

The focus on pre-application has been to provide a more comprehensive response and 

this should pay dividends when an application is submitted.  As a consequence of this the 

response time sometimes exceeds the target time. We are looking to initiate an extension 

of time process to identify pre-apps that have extended discussions so accurate reporting 

can be undertaken without skewing the stats on the bulk of the pre-apps. The most recent 

figure indicates average times have reduced to 40 days.

Notes on 'Red' Performance Measures

4628

BV204

Page 13Page 30



Goal 4 - TDC 12 - An Effective and Customer Focused Council December 2018

Human Resources

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

0.4 0.9

0.5 1.1

0.7 1.0

0.7 0.0

0.6 0.0

0.7 0.0

216 222

227 226

238 224

232 0

226 0

222 0

BV012

LE600

b

Land Charges

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

12.0 12.0

13.0 10.0

15.2 12.0

13.1 0.0

14.0 0.0

14.0 0.0

76.0% 83.6%

81.3% 84.1%

78.0% 79.7%

81.1% 0.0%

77.6% 0.0%

81.5% 0.0%

2015/16 

Actual

15.0

Notes on 'Red' Performance Measures

Average Number of Employees (Full time 

equivalent)

We continue to operate strict vacancy management whereby any appointments are 

scrutinised at Senior Manager level. A number of posts previously filled by agency 

workers have now been recruited to - for example in Waste and Recycling service area 

and Planning.

Total Year to 

Date

Description

12.8

90.0%

15.0

80.3% 79.5%

End to End time for Searches 

(Days)

Local Land Charges % Market 

Share
LE707

17.2

Total same 

time last year

Year to date 

Target

2016/17 

Actual

2017/18 

Actual

2015/16 

Actual

Year to date 

Target

ANNUAL FIGURES

2018/19 

Target

Sickness - average number of days per 

employee

We are currently managing a higher level than normal of long term sickness cases. This 

has obviously had an impact on the sickness figures. However, cases are being 

proactively managed in line with our managing attendance policy and in conjunction with 

advice from our occupational health advisors to ensure we facilitate a return to work as 

soon as possible while appropriately addressing any health concerns.

LE701

228

Total same 

time last year

BV012
Sickness - average number of 

days per employee

Average Number of Employees 

(Full time equivalent)

5.07.0

206LE600b

Measure Description

7.0

206

15.0

2016/17 

Actual

2017/18 

Actual

90.0%

15.8

206

5.1

79.6%

2018/19 

Target

82.9%

6.87.0

n/a

85.9%

8.2

4.9

213n/a

Measure

ANNUAL FIGURES

Total Year to 

Date

Page 14Page 31



Goal 4 - TDC 12 - An Effective and Customer Focused Council December 2018

Property & Procurement Progress Service

Previously 

Green

Property & 

Procure

PP2.S

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

11.0 6.0

11.0 12.3

11.0 8.2

9.0 0.0

11.0 0.0

10.6 0.0

LE400

Revenue & Benefits

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

10.9% 9.6%

9.3% 9.1%

9.1% 8.9%

9.2% 0.0%

9.1% 3.1%

9.1% 0.0%

13.6% 9.2%

9.0% 8.0%

9.3% 7.9%

8.9% 0.0%

8.4% 0.0%

7.9% 0.0%

98.9% 99.8%

98.8% 100.0%

97.8% 100.0%

99.3% 0.0%

99.7% 0.0%

99.7% 0.0%

BV010 NNDR (Business Rates) Collection Rate

A recent review of businesses claiming a discount has resulted in a number of businesses 

losing their small business rates relief which is equivalent to approximately 1% of net 

collectable debit. Those businesses affected have been rebilled and are currently subject 

to recovery action which should result in an improvement in the collection rate during the 

last quarter.

Notes on 'Red' Performance Measures

End to end time for responsive repairs (Days)

Current difficulties associated with local labour and resources within our supply chain are 

impacting on the ability to respond to repairs within the target timeframes. Although in 

reality they are only marginally higher than target.

Notes on 'Red' Performance Measures

98.7%

Develop, maintain and expand Commercial Estate.

1. Minimise voids and turnover.

2. Maintain competitive rental levels and improve 

rents by 2.5% pa. 

3. Tenant friendly terms. 

4. Deliver new commercial space at Caddsdown, 

and other sites. 

5. Accessing external funding with Econ 

Development

6. Improve ICT / Telephony at Caddsdown

(Q1-4)

LE400

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Target
Measure

2016/17 

Actual

ANNUAL FIGURES

2015/16 

Actual

10.1

2015/16 

Actual

2018/19 

Target

7.07.0

Description

BV009 84.3%

Total Year to 

Date

NNDR (Business Rates) 

Collection Rate
82.1%

LE209 Debtor Collection YTD 100.0%

BV010

Council Tax Collection Rate

Total same 

time last year

7.0 7.8

Comments

97.8%

98.2%

ANNUAL FIGURES

98.3%

2016/17 

Actual

98.4%98.5%84.0%84.4%

98.0% 98.7%97.0% 95.4%

98.5%

98.0%

85.3% 98.5% 98.0%

Total Year to 

Date

2017/18 

Actual

84.6%

2017/18 

Actual

Year to date 

Target

10.2

Total same 

time last year

6.9
End to end time for responsive 

repairs (Days)

Measure Description

1. Pro-active management of tenancies to reduce vacant 

premises and improve turn-around times for premises coming 

back on the market. Current waiting list for units, but studio 

uptake remains a challenge.

2. Rentals are bench-marked against local rates and increased 

over base levels where possible.

3. Tenant Friendly terms maintained without compromising 

commercial interest. 

4. Commercial space at Caddsdown remains in the plan and 

has commenced on site. Other sites will be developed following 

capital receipts from current disposal sites. 

5. External funding opportunities assessed as presented.

6. Works will be completed by Novemeber 2019.

Page 15Page 32



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2018/19

Cycle 1 Cycle 2 Cycle 3    Cycle 4 Cycle 5 Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 8

8 May 2018 19 June 2018 7 Aug 2018 18 Sept 2018 6 Nov 2018 18 Dec 2018 12 Feb 2019 12 March 2019 16 April 2019

4pm 2pm 4pm 2pm 4pm 2pm 4pm 2pm

Cllr James to report 
re Cornwall County 

Council Rolling 
Investment Fund

 
Peer Review Action 

Plan

End Of Financial 
Year QBR

Work Programme & 
Forward Plan 

2018/19

Update from 
External Grants T&F 

Group

T&F Group update
Govt’s Response to 
select cttee report 

on  effectiveness of 
LA scrutiny

S106 Agreements 
(S Dengate & J 

Hollis)

GDPR update (J 
Hollis)

Update on the 
Progress of Tourism 

Strategy

Update on Economy 
Strategy

Partner Evaluation
(Mr Topham)

(e-mail Mr Topham 
to invite)

Compulsory 
Purchase

Council Tax 
Discretionary 

Discount
(ST)

Affordable Housing 
(SK)

QBR Q1
(DH)

QBR Q2

The Effectiveness of 
LA O&S Cttees.

Report from 
Strategic Manager 

(Resources) on T&F 
Group 

External Grants 
Update from Task & 

Finish

Section 106 
Agreements (18 

September, Minute 
35)

Affordable Housing 
(18 September, 

minute 35)

Income Generation 
Strategy Review 

(SH)

Budget Special 

Empty Homes 
Strategy (from 

meeting of 6 Feb for 
discussion before 

next financial year)

QBR Q3

Play Strategy (call-
in)

S106 Agreements 
Planning & 

Economy Manager 
to report on revised 

procedure 
implemented 

Report from Joint 
Working Group on 

External Grants

Standing
Item

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 

Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 

Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 

Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 
Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 
Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 

Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 

Finish Group

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 

Finish Group
GDPR update GDPR update GDPR update GDPR update

Council Tax Discount 
Task & Finish Group

Council Tax Discount 
Task & Finish Group

KEEP UNDER REVIEW
Harbour Board Working Group LGA Consultation
Land Charges Economy – Chair to discuss with Ext Chair – joint meeting, once policies are ready for review.
Officer / Member External Grants T&F Group (Joint with External Scrutiny)

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 11


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	8 Play Strategy - Call-in
	9 QBR 3
	11 Consideration Of The Forward Plan

